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31ST ANNUAL REPORT 2024-2025

NOTICE

NOTICE Is hereby given that the THIRTY FIRST ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING of the Members of MAXIMUS 
SECURITIES LIMITED will be held at the Registered Office of the Company at First Floor, Sterling Centre, Opp. Divine Child 
High School, Andheri Kurla Road, Andheri (East), Mumbai – 400093 on Thursday, the 11th September, 2025 at 11.00 am to 
transact the following business: 

Ordinary Business:

1. To consider and adopt the Audited Statement of Profit and Loss, Cash Flow Statement,  Statement of Changes in the 
Equity of the Company for the year ended 31st March, 2025 and the Balance Sheet at that date and the Reports of Directors 
and the Auditors thereon.

Special Business:

2. Appointment of Secretarial Auditor:

 “RESOLVED THAT pursuant to provisions of Regulation 24A of Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing 
Obligation and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 it is here by propose to appoint M/S. Vijay S. Tiwari & 
Associates, Practicing Company Secretaries, Proprietor CS Vijay S. Tiwari (Membership No: 33085, CP No: 12220) 
holding Peer Review  Certificate No: 1679/2022 as Secretarial Auditor for a period of  Five Consecutive Financial Years 
commencing from the Financial Year 2025-2026 to the Financial Year 2029-2030 as recommended by the Audit Committee 
and is subject to approval by the members in the ensuing Annual General Meeting at such remuneration as shall be fixed by 
the Board of Director of the Company.”

3.   To consider and if thought fit, to pass with or without modification, the following resolution as an Ordinary Resolution.

 “RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Section 196,197, 198 and 200 read with Schedule V and other 
applicable provisions, if any, of the Companies Act, 2013, the company in Annual General Meeting, hereby approves the re-
appointment, the terms of re-appointment and the payment of remuneration to Mr. K. Suryanarayanan as a Whole Time 
Director of the Company for a period of Six Months commencing from 1st August 2025 till 31st January 2026 on a salary, 
allowances and perquisites payable to him in accordance with Schedule V of the Companies Act, 2013 as set out in the 
Explanatory Statement attached to the Notice, with liberty to the Board of Directors to alter or vary the said terms of 
appointment and salary, allowances and perquisites in such manner as the Board may  in its discretion deem fit and 
acceptable to Mr. K. Suryanarayanan, within the limits specified in Schedule V of the Companies Act, 2013 or any 
amendment or modifications or re-enactment made, hereafter in that regard.

 RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board of Directors be and are hereby severally authorized to take such steps as may 
be necessary to give effect to this resolution.”

                                                            By Order of the Board
                     For MAXIMUS SECURITIES LIMITED

                                                                                                                                          
                                                                                                                   N. R. DIVATE   

                                                                                                                         Chairman
Registered Office: 
First Floor, Sterling Centre,
Opp.Divine Child High School, 
Andheri-Kurla Road,
Andheri (East), Mumbai - 400 093.

Dated: 25th July, 2025 

NOTES: 

1. A MEMBER ENTITLED TO ATTEND AND VOTE IS ENTITLED TO APPOINT A PROXY OR PROXIES TO ATTEND 
AND VOTE INSTEAD OF HIMSELF AND THAT A PROXY NEED NOT BE A MEMBER. 

2. The Explanatory Statement as required under Section 102 of the Companies Act, 2013 in respect of item nos.2 and 3 
mentioned in the above notice is annexed hereto.
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MAXIMUS SECURITIES LIMITED

Explanatory Statement pursuant to Section 102 of The Companies Act, 2013 of item nos. 2 and 3

Item No. 2

Appointment of Secretarial Auditor:

M/S. Vijay S. Tiwari & Associates, proprietor Mr. Vijay S. Tiwari  (Membership No: 33085, Certificate of Practice No: 12220),  
Practicing Company Secretaries holding peer Review Certificate No: 1679/2022 are providing various services related to 
Secretarial Practice since the year 2011. They are specialised in day-to-day Secretarial Work, Legal Services, Appearance / 
Representations before Regional Director-Company Law Board, NCLT / NCLAT, RBI and FEMA Matters etc. Their expertise in 
multiple fields will be an added advantage for the Company. 

The Board recommends the Resolution at Item No. 2 for the approval of members.

Item No. 3

Re-appointment of Mr. K.Suryanarayanan as Whole Time Director:

The Board of Directors re-appoint Mr. K. Suryanarayanan as Whole Time Director for a period of Six Months commencing from 
1st August 2025 till 31st January 2026 subject to the confirmation by the members at this meeting.

As a Whole Time Director, Mr. K. Suryanarayanan shall be responsible for the Accounts Finance, MIS, Back-office Functions 
and compliances relating to the business of Stock Broking and Investment Activities carried on by the company as a member of 
recognized stock Exchanges viz. BSE and NSE and shall exercise substantial powers of management in connection with the 
said responsibilities. He shall however function under the direction, control and superintendence of the Director in charge and 
the Board of Directors and shall perform such specific functions and duties as are entrusted to him by the Board from time to 
time.

He will be paid remuneration and perquisites within the provisions of schedule V of the Companies Act, 2013 more particularly 
mentioned hereunder:

a) Salary in the Scale of (IRs.13,000/- per month towards Basic (ii) Rs.4,500/- per month towards House Rent Allowance and 
(iii) Rs.20,000/- per month towards Other Allowances The annual increment is at the discretion of the Board of Director in 
charge.

b) ln addition to the above, he shall be entitled to the following which shall not be included in the computation of perquisites for 
the purpose of calculating the said ceiling:

 i)  Reimbursement of expenses actually and properly incurred by him for the business of the company 

        ii)   Leave: As per rules of the Company

c) Notwithstanding anything to the contrary herein contained, wherein any financial year during the currency of the tenure of 
Whole Time Director, the Company has no profits or its profits are inadequate, the Company will pay remuneration by way 
of salary and perquisites as specified in (a) and (b) above, subject to the limits prescribed under schedule V to the 
Companies Act, 2013.

d)  salary and perquisites as mentioned at items (a) and (b) above will be exclusive of :

 (i)  Gratuity payable as per the Gratuity Act, 1972 and

 (ii) Encashment of leave at the end of the tenure.

The above remuneration payable to him shall be subject to the limits laid down in Section 196 of The Companies Act, 2013 and 
within the overall limit as laid down in Section 197 of the said Act and subject to the provisions of Schedule V of The Companies 
Act,2013.

No sitting fees shall be paid to him for attending the meetings of the Board of Directors or the Committee thereof the Company. 
His appointment is terminable at 3 months' notice from either side. The Total remuneration payable to him shall be within the 
limits prescribed under Schedule V to The Companies Act, 2013.

None of the Directors of the Company except Mr. K. Suryanarayanan is concerned or interested in the Resolution

The Board recommends the Resolution at Item No. 3 for the approval of members.

By Order of the Board
                     For MAXIMUS SECURITIES LIMITED

                                                                                                                                           
                                                                                                                   N. R. DIVATE   
                                                                                                                         Chairman

Registered Office: 
First Floor, Sterling Centre,
Opp.Divine Child High School, 
Andheri-Kurla Road,
Andheri (East), Mumbai - 400 093.
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT

To,
The Members
Maximus Securities Limited

Your Directors present the Thirty First Annual Report with the Audited Financial Statements of the Company for the year ended 
31st March, 2025.

1.   FINANCIAL RESULTS

 The Financial results of the company for the year under review as compared to the previous year are summarised below for 
your consideration:

Particulars Year Ended 31.03.2025 Year Ended 31.03.2024
 (Rs. in Lakhs) (Rs. in Lakhs)

Operations & Other Income 613.78 488.11
Interest, Depreciation and Other Expenses 423.84 352.90
Profit before Tax 189.94 135.21
Profit after Tax 187.76 113.98
Interim Dividend paid 10.00 8.00
Contingency Provision for Taxation  34.00 -
Other Comprehensive Income  119.30 585.89
Less: Provision for Market Fluctuations in Investments 16.37 61.72
Add:  Amount brought forward from previous year  2565.57 1935.42

Profit carried forward to Balance Sheet 2812.26 2565.57

2.  CONTINGENCY PROVISION FOR TAXATION

 The Company has not provided for Income Tax for the year but has created a contingency provision of Rs. 34,00,000/- 
towards Income Tax as the merger application with the parent Company, Hybrid Financial Services Limited is pending at 
the NCLT. 

 Upon approval of the merger by the NCLT, the accounts would have to be recast from 1st April, 2024 to give effect to the 
merger 

3.   DIVIDEND

 The Directors are not recommending any Final Dividend for the Financial Year Ended 31st March 2025 to conserve 
resources. 

4.   OPERATION 

 The Company has earned a brokerage income of Rs. 388.21 Lakhs as compared to Rs.323.37 Lakhs during the previous 
year. The income from depository segment was Rs.17.07 Lakhs as compared to Rs. 16.48 Lakhs during the previous year. 
The Company ended the financial year with a pretax profit of Rs. 189.94 Lakhs as compared to the pretax profit of 
Rs.135.21 Lakhs during the previous year. 

5.   HOLDING COMPANY

 The entire share capital of the Company is held by Hybrid Financial Services Limited  the holding company. 

6.   BOARD MEETINGS

 The Board of Directors duly met five times in 2024-2025 i.e., on 15th May 2024, 29th July 2024, 30th October 2024, ,31st 
January 2024 and 26th March 2025. The details of meeting attended by the Directors during the year 2024-2025 are as 
under:

Sr. No. Name of the Directors  Number of meetings attended by the Director

1. Mr. Nandakishore R. Divate 5

2. Mr. Sameer S. Pimpale 5

3. Mrs. Megha J. Vazkar 5

4. Mr. K. Suryanarayanan 5

7.   MEMBERS MEETINGS

 The Company held 30th Annual General Meeting on 29th July 2024 and One Extraordinary General Meetings on 
31st January 2025. Requisite Quorum was present in both the two meetings.

31ST ANNUAL REPORT 2024-2025
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MAXIMUS SECURITIES LIMITED

Members of the Committee Category Number of meetings attended by the Director

Mr. Sameer S. Pimpale Chairman 4

Mr. Nandakishore R. Divate Member 4

Mrs. Megha J. Vazkar Member 4

 B. NOMINATION AND REMUNERATION COMMITTEE:

  The Nomination and Remuneration Committee is Constituted in line with the provisions of section 178 of the 
Companies Act, 2013. The Nomination and Remuneration Committee met two times in 2024-2025 i.e., on 15th May 
2024 and 30th October 2024. The members of the Nomination and Remuneration committee are as under as on 31st 
March 2025:    

Members of the Committee Category Number of meetings attended by the Director

Mr. Nandakishore R. Divate Chairman 2

Mrs. Megha J. Vazkar Member 2

Mr. Sameer S. Pimpale Member 2

9.   BOARD EVALUATION

 The evaluation of the Company’s Performance and that of Whole Time Directors was done by the Independent Directors. 
The Independent Directors have not communicated anything adverse. 

10.  COMPLIANCES OF APPLICABLE SECRETARIAL STANDARDS   

 The Company has complied with the provisions of Secretarial Standards 1 (Board Meetings) and Secretarial Standards 2 
(General Meetings) to the extent as applicable to the Company.   

11.  AUDIT REPORT 

 The Auditors Report for the Fiscal 2024-2025 does not contain any qualification, reservation or adverse remark. The 
Auditor’s Report is enclosed with the financial statement in this Annual Report.  

12.  PARTICULRS OF CONTRACTS OR ARRANGEMENTS WITH RELATED PARTIES

 The details of Related Parties and the Transaction with them are disclosed as required by Ind As - 24 issued by The Institute 
of Chartered Accountants of India under Note No. 2.20.4 forming part of this Annual Report. 

 In our opinion there were no “material” transactions that warrant a disclosure in this report.

 Accordingly, particulars of Contracts or Arrangements with related parties referred to in Section 188 (1) in Form AOC-2 
does not form a part of this report. 

 Further the members may note that the Company has not entered into Contracts / Arrangements / Transactions which are 
not at arm’s length basis.

13.  PARTICULRS OF LOAN GIVEN, INVESTMENT MADE, GURANTEES GIVEN AND SECURITIES PROVIDED  

 During the year under the review, pursuant to the provisions of Section 186 of the Companies Act, 2013, Company has not 
granted any loan or has made any Investment or given any guarantees and security.  

14.  TRANSFER TO RESERVES

 The Company has not transferred any amount to any Reserve Account during the financial year 2024-2025 other than the 
transfer of profit after tax with Other Comprehensive Income during the year.

8.   OTHER COMMITTEES

 The Company has constituted the following Committees:

 A. AUDIT COMMITTEE:

  The Audit Committee of the Company is Constituted in line with the provisions of section 177 of the Companies Act, 
2013. The Audit Committee duly met four times in 2024-2025 i.e., on 15th May 2024, 29th July 2024, 30th October 
2024 and 31st January 2025. The members of the Audit Committee are as under as on 31st March 2025:
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15.  SEXUAL HARASSEMENT

 Your Company has Zero Tolerance towards Sexual Harassment and there were no complaints of any Sexual Harassment 
during the year under review.

16.  INTERNAL CONTROL SYSTEM

 The Company has an adequate internal control system commensurate with the size of the Company and the nature of its 
business. The Internal Control System of the Company are monitored and evaluated by External Firm of Chartered 
Accountant and their Audit Reports are periodically reviewed by the Audit Committee of the Board of Directors. The 
observations and comments of the Audit Committee are placed before the Board.

17.  PUBLIC FIXED DEPOSITS

 The Company has not accepted any deposits from the public as on 31st March, 2025 and therefore particulars stipulated in 
respect thereof are nil.

18. OUTLOOK 

 The year 2024-25 has been a good year for our company. However, the geo political scenario has changed a lot since then. 
The uncertainties of the Trade Related Tariffs have made business environment more challenging for long term planning. 
All this has a bearing upon the stock markets and their operations. Under the circumstances we are cautious in our outlook 
for the year 2025-26.

19.  PARTICULARS OF EMPLOYEES 

 There are no employees covered under Section 134(3) of the Companies Act, 2013, read with the Companies (Particulars 
of Employees) Rules, 1975.

20.  DIRECTOR’S RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT

 The financial statements are prepared in accordance with Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) under the historical cost 
convention on accrual basis except for certain financial instruments, which are measured at fair values. The Company has 
adopted all the Ind AS standards and the adoption was carried out in accordance with applicable transition guidance. 

 As required under section 134(3) ( c) of the Companies Act, 2013, the Directors hereby confirm that:

 i. in the preparation of the annual accounts, the applicable accounting standards have been followed along with proper 
explanation relating to material departures;

 ii. the Directors have selected such accounting policies and applied them consistently and made judgements and 
estimates that are reasonable and prudent so as to give a true and fair view of state of affairs of the Company at the 
end of the financial year and of the profit of the Company for the year;

 iii. the Directors have taken proper and sufficient care for the maintenance of adequate accounting records in 
accordance with the provisions of this Act for safeguarding the assets of the Company and for preventing and 
detecting fraud and other irregularities;

 iv. the Directors have prepared the annual accounts on a going concern basis.

 v. The Directors had devised proper systems to ensure compliance with the provisions of all applicable laws and that 
such systems were adequate and operating effectively.

21.   SECRETARIAL AUDITOR

 The Board of Directors have appointed Mr. Vijay S. Tiwari, a practising Company Secretary, as Secretarial Auditor for the 
Financial Year 2024-2025. The Board also recommends the appointment of Mr. Vijay Tiwari as the Secretarial Auditor for 
the financial years from 2025-2026 to 2029-2030 as recommended by the Audit Committee subject to the approval of the 
shareholders.

22.  CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY 

 The said provisions are not applicable to the Company.

23.  CONSERVATION OF ENERGY, TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION, FOREIGN EXCHANGE    EARNINGS AND 
OUTGOING

 The Company is not engaged in manufacturing activities therefore there is no information to submit in respect of 
conservation of energy and absorption of technology.

 Foreign Exchange earnings:    Nil           Foreign Exchange outgoings:  Nil

31ST ANNUAL REPORT 2024-2025
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MAXIMUS SECURITIES LIMITED

24.   DIRECTORATE

 The present tenure of Mr. K.Suryanarayanan, as Whole Time Director will end on 31st July 2025. The Remuneration 
Committee has already recommended the reappointment of Mr. K. Suryanarayanan as Whole Time Director for a period of 
Six Months commencing from 1st August 2025. So, Members are hereby requested to consider and approve his 
reappointment on the terms as per the resolution placed in the Annual General Meeting. Mr. K.Suryanarayanan is 
interested in the said resolution. The Board of Directors also strongly recommend the same. 

25.  SCHEME OF ARRANGEMENT

 During the year the Company held an Extraordinary General Meeting (EGM) on 15th September, 2023 under the 
provisions of Sections 233 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 25 of Companies (Compromises, Arrangements and 
Amalgamations) Rules, 2016 for the proposed Scheme of Amalgamation of Maximus Securities Limited (Transferor 
Company) with Parent Company, Hybrid Financial Services Limited  (Transferee Company). The majority members in the 
EGM approves the scheme.  However, The Regional Director, Ministry of Corporate Affairs, Mumbai had rejected this 
proposal on account of delayed submission of documents. Then the Company had decided to approach National 
Company Law Tribunal (NCLT), Mumbai for the proposed Scheme of Merger. The NCLT has passed first motion order 
dated 26th November 2024 dispensing with the requirements of Shareholders’ Meeting for merger and ordered on 
completion of other legal / statutory formalities to complete the merger.

26.   ACKNOWLEDGEMENTS

 Your Directors wish to thank and place on record their appreciation of the valuable support given by Clients, Financial 
institutions, FIIs, Banks and Mutual Funds. Your Directors also record the appreciation for the services rendered by the 
employees of the Company.        

For and on behalf of the Board

                                                                                                                                  

                                                                                                             N. R. DIVATE                        

                                                                          Chairman

Place:  Mumbai

Date 25th July, 2025

7



Form No. MR-3

SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT

FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH 2025

[Pursuant to section 204(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and rule No.9 of the Companies 
(Appointment and Remuneration Personnel) Rules, 2014]

The Members, 
Maximus Securities Limited, 
First Floor, Sterling Centre,
Andheri-Kurla Road, 
Chakala, Andheri (East),
Mumbai - 400093
CIN: U67120MH1994PLC076758

We have conducted the secretarial audit of the compliance of applicable statutory provisions and the adherence to good 
corporate practices by Maximus Securities Limited (hereinafter called the Company) which is unlisted material subsidiary of 
Hybrid Financial Services Limited, a Listed Company.  Secretarial Audit was conducted in a manner that provided us a 
reasonable basis for evaluating the Corporate Governance conducts/statutory compliances and expressing our opinion 
thereon. 

Based on our verification of the Company’s books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and other records maintained 
by the Company and also the information provided by the Company, its officers, agents and authorized representatives during 
the conduct of secretarial audit, we hereby report that in our opinion, the Company has, during the audit period covering the 
Financial Year Ended on 31st March 2025 complied with the statutory provisions listed hereunder and also that the Company 
has proper Board-processes and compliance-mechanism in place to the extent, in the manner and subject to the reporting made 
hereinafter: 

We have examined the books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and other records maintained by Maximus 
Securities Limited (“the Company”) for the Financial Year Ended on 31st March 2025 according to the provisions of: 

(i) The Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) and the rules made hereunder;

(ii) The Securities Contracts (Regulation) Act, 1956 (‘SCRA’) and the rules made hereunder; (Not Applicable to the 
Company) 

(iii) The Depositories Act, 1996 and the Regulations and Bye-laws framed hereunder; 

(iv) Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999 and the rules and regulations made hereunder to the extent of Foreign Direct 
Investment, Overseas Direct Investment and External Commercial Borrowings; (Not Applicable to the Company)

(v) The following Regulations and Guidelines prescribed under the Securities and Exchange Board of India Act, 1992 (‘SEBI 
Act’):-  

 (a) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Stock Brokers) Regulations 1992; 

 (b) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations 2015; 
(Not Applicable to the Company)

 (c) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Substantial Acquisition of Shares and Takeovers) Regulations, 2011; 
(Not Applicable to the Company)

 (d) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Prohibition of Insider Trading) Regulations, 1992; (Not Applicable to 
the Company)

 (e) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue of Capital and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2009; 
(Not Applicable to the Company)

 (f) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Employee Stock Option Scheme and Employee Stock Purchase 
Scheme) Guidelines, 1999; (Not Applicable to the Company)

 (g) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue and Listing of Debt Securities) Regulations, 2008; (Not 
Applicable to the Company)

 (h) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Registrars to an Issue and Share Transfer Agents) Regulations, 1993 
regarding the Companies Act and dealing with client; (Not Applicable to the Company) 

31ST ANNUAL REPORT 2024-2025
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MAXIMUS SECURITIES LIMITED

 (i) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Delisting of Equity Shares) Regulations, 2009; (Not Applicable to the 
Company) and

 (j) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Buyback of Securities) Regulations, 1998; (Not Applicable to the 
Company)

(vi) The Company has not identified any other laws which are presently applicable to it.

 We have also examined compliance with the applicable clauses of the Secretarial Standards issued by The Institute of 
Company Secretaries of India.

 The Board of Directors of the Company is duly constituted with proper balance of Executive Directors, Non-Executive 
Directors and Independent Directors. No change took place in the composition of the Board of Directors during the period 
under review.  

 Adequate notice is given to all Directors to schedule the Board Meetings, agenda and detailed notes on agenda were sent 
at least seven days in advance, and a system exists for seeking and obtaining further information and clarifications on the 
agenda items before the meeting and for meaningful participation at the meeting. 

 We further report that there are adequate systems and processes in the Company commensurate with the size and 
operations of the Company to monitor and ensure compliance with applicable laws, rules, regulations and guidelines. 

For Vijay S. Tiwari & Associates
Company Secretaries in Practice

Vijay Tiwari
Proprietor

C.P. No. 12220  
M.No.   33084

 UDIN No: A033084G000387240

Place:  Mumbai
Date:  20th May 2025
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT

To,
The Members,
MAXIMUS SECURITIES LIMITED 

Report on the Financial Statements

Opinion

We have audited the accompanying Financial Statements of MAXIMUS SECURITIES LIMITED (“The Company”), which 
comprise the Balance Sheet as at 31st March 2025, and the Statement of Profit and Loss, Statement of Changes in Equity and 
Statement of Cash Flows for the year then ended, and notes to the financial statements, including a summary of significant 
accounting policies and other explanatory information.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the aforesaid financial statements 
give the information required by the Act in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting 
principles generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at 31st March, 2025, and profit including 
comprehensive income, the statement of changes in equity and its cash flows for the year ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion 

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs) specified under section 143(10) of the Companies 
Act, 2013. Our responsibilities under those Standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the 
Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by 
the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial 
statements under the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Rules thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical 
responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the ICAI’s Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we 
have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion on the financial statements.

Emphasis of Matter

We draw attention to:

• Note 2.20 (1) of Financial Statement which state that the Company has not provided for income tax for the year but has 
created a contingency provision of Rs 34 lakhs towards income tax as the merger application with parent company is 
pending at NCLT.

• Note 2.20 (10) of the Financial Statements, which states that the Company has made provision towards gratuity on the 
basis of Gratuity Act instead of Ind AS 19 as prescribed by ICAI. “Employee Benefit”.

Our opinion is not modified in respect of these matters.

Information Other than the Financial Statements and Auditor’s Report Thereon 

The Company’s Management and Board of Directors is responsible for the preparation of the other information. The other 
information comprises the information included in the annual report but does not include the financial statements and our 
auditor’s report thereon. The Company’s annual report is expected to be made available to us after the date of this auditor’s 
report. 

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express any form of assurance 
conclusion thereon. 

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so, 
consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained during 
the course of our audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. 

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information; we are 
required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Management’s and Board of Directors Responsibility for the Financial Statements

The Company’s Management and Board of Directors are responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of the Companies 
Act, 2013 (“the Act”) with respect to the preparation of these financial statements that give a true and fair view of the financial 
position, financial performance, changes in equity and cash flows of the Company in accordance with the accounting principles 
generally accepted in India, including the accounting Standards specified under section 133 of the Act. This responsibility also 
includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the 

31ST ANNUAL REPORT 2024-2025
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MAXIMUS SECURITIES LIMITED

assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate 
implementation and maintenance of accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; 
and design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring 
the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the financial 
statement  that  give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. 

In preparing the financial statements, management and Board of Directors are responsible for assessing the Company’s ability 
to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of 
accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative 
but to do so. The Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting process.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free from material 
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is 
a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material 
misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the 
aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial 
statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout 
the audit. We also:

• Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the Annual Financial Results, whether due to fraud or error, design 
and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to 
provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one 
resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of 
internal control.

• Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in 
the circumstances, Under Section 143(3)(If the Act, we are also responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the 
Company has adequate internal financial controls with reference to financial statements in place and the operating 
effectiveness of such controls. 

• Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related 
disclosure made by the Management and Board of Directors. 

• Evaluate the appropriateness and reasonableness of disclosures made by the Board of Directors in terms of the 
requirements specified under Regulation 33 of the Listing Regulations. 

• Conclude on the appropriateness of the Management’s and Board of Directors’ use of the going concern basis of 
accounting in preparation of financial statement and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty 
exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the ability of the Company to continue as a going 
concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the 
related disclosures in the Statement or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are 
based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may cause 
the Company to cease to continue as a going concern. 

• Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the Annual Financial Results, including the disclosures, and 
whether the Annual Standalone Financial Results represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that 
achieves fair presentation. 

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the 
audit and significant audit findings including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit. 

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements 
regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to 
bear on our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements 

1. As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2020 (“the Order”), issued by the Central Government of India in 
terms of sub-section (11) of section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013, we give in the “Annexure A” statement on the matters 
specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order, to the extent applicable. 
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2.  (A)  As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that: 

  a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our knowledge and 
belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit. 

  b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so far as it appears 
from our examination of those books. 

  c) The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss (including other comprehensive income), the statement of 
changes in equity and the Cash Flow Statement dealt with by this Report are in agreement with the books of 
account. 

  d) In our opinion, the aforesaid financial statements comply with the Accounting Standards specified under 
Section 133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014.

  e) On the basis of the written representations received from the Directors as on 31st March, 2025 taken on record 
by the Board of Directors, none of the Directors is disqualified as on 31st March, 2025 from being appointed 
as a Director in terms of Section 164 (2) of the Act. 

  f) With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial reporting of the Company and the 
operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate Report in “Annexure B”.

 (B) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with Rule 11 of the Companies 
(Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations 
given to us: 

  a)   Company does not have any pending litigations which would impact its financial position 

  b)  The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for which there were any 
material foreseeable losses. 

  c) There were no amounts which required to be transferred to the Investor Education and Protection Fund by the 
Company.

  d) (i)  The management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, no funds have been 
advanced or loaned or invested (either from borrowed funds or share premium or any other sources or 
kind of funds) by the Company to or in any other persons or entities, including foreign entities 
(“Intermediaries”), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Intermediary 
shall, directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever 
(“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) by or on behalf of the Company or provide any guarantee, security or the like to 
or on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.

   (ii)  The management has represented, that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, no funds have been 
received by the Company from any persons or entities, including foreign entities (“Funding Parties”), with 
the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Company shall directly or indirectly, 
lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) 
by or on behalf of the Funding Party or provide any guarantee, security or the like from or on behalf of the 
Ultimate Beneficiaries; and

   (iii)  Based on such audit procedures as considered reasonable and appropriate in the circumstances, 
nothing has come to our notice that has caused us to believe that the representations under sub clause 
(d) (i) and (d) (ii) contain any material mis-statement.

  e) The dividend declared or paid during the year by the Company is in compliance with Section 123 of the Act.

  f) Based on our examination, which included test checks, the Company has used accounting software systems 
for maintaining its books of account for the financial year ended March 31, 2025 which have the feature of 
recording audit trail (edit log) facility and the same has operated throughout the year for all relevant transactions 
recorded in the software systems. Further, during the course of our audit we did not come across any instance 
of the audit trail feature being tampered with and the audit trail has been preserved by the Company as per the 
statutory requirements for record retention
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MAXIMUS SECURITIES LIMITED

 (C)   With respect to the matter to be included in the Auditor’s Report under Section 197(16) of the Act: 

  In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the remuneration paid by the Company 
to its directors during the current year is in accordance with the provisions of Section 197 of the Act. The 
remuneration paid to any director is not in excess of the limit laid down under Section 197 of the Act. The Ministry of 
Corporate Affairs has not prescribed other details under Section 197(16) of the Act which are required to be 
commented upon by us.

For S Ramanand Aiyar & Co.
Chartered Accountants,

Firm Registration No: 000990N

Binod C Maharana
Partner

Membership No. 056373
UDIN: 25056373BMHYXA7402

Mumbai, Dated 20th May 2025
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ANNEXURE A TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT

[The annexure referred to in our Independent Auditors’ Report of even date to the members of the Company on the Ind AS 
financial statements for the year ended 31st March 2025, in paragraph 1 under the heading “Report on Other Legal and 
Regulatory Requirements” of MAXIMUS SECURITIES LIMITED. 

i. a (A) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including quantitative details and 
situation of Property, Plant and Equipment.

  (B) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars of Intangible assets.

 b According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of the records of the 
Company, the Property, Plant and Equipment were physically verified during the year by the Management in 
accordance with a regular programme of verification which, in our opinion, provides for physical verification of all the 
Property, Plant and Equipment at reasonable intervals. According to the information and explanation given to us, no 
material discrepancies were noticed on such verification.

 c. According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of the records of the 
Company, the title deeds of immovable properties are held in the name of the Company.

 d According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of the records of the 
Company, the Company has not revalued its Property, Plant and Equipment or Intangible Assets or both during the 
year.

 e According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of the records of the 
Company, there are no proceedings initiated or pending against the Company for holding any benami property under 
the Prohibition of Benami Property Transactions Act, 1988 and rules made thereunder.

ii a The Company is a broking Company, primarily engaged in security market. Accordingly, it does not hold any physical 
inventories. Accordingly, clause 3(ii)(a) of the Order is not applicable.

 b According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of the records of the 
Company, the Company has not been sanctioned working capital limits in excess of five crore rupees, in aggregate, 
from banks or financial institutions on the basis of the security of current assets at any point of time during the year. 
Accordingly, clause 3(ii)(b) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

iii According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of the records of the 
company, the Company has not made any investment, provided guarantee or security or granted any loans secured or 
unsecured to companies, firms, Limited Liability partnership or other parties during the year. Accordingly, clause 3(iii) of the 
Order is not applicable to the Company.

iv In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has complied with the 
provisions of section 185 and 186 of the Act, with respect to the loans and investments made.

v According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not accepted any deposits or amounts which 
are deemed to be deposits from the public during the year and hence the directives issued by the Reserve Bank of India 
and the provisions of Sections 73 to 76 or any other relevant provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and the rules framed 
there under, are not applicable to the Company.

vi According to the information and explanations given to us, the Central Government has not prescribed the maintenance of 
cost records under Section 148(1) of the Act. Therefore, the provisions of clause (vi) of the Order are not applicable to the 
Company.

vii a The Company has generally been regular in depositing undisputed statutory dues, including Provident Fund, 
Employees’ State Insurance, Income Tax, Sales Tax, Service Tax, Goods and Service Tax, Customs Duty, Excise 
Duty, Value Added Tax, Cess and any other material statutory dues applicable to it with the appropriate authorities.

  According to the information and explanations given to us, there were no undisputed amounts payable in respect of 
Provident Fund, Employees’ State Insurance, Income-Tax, Sales-Tax, Service Tax, Goods and Service Tax, Customs 
Duty, Excise Duty, Value Added Tax, Cess and any other material statutory dues in arrears, as at 31st March, 2025 for 
a period of more than six months from the date they became payable.

 b According to the information and explanations given to us, there are no dues of Income Tax, Sales Tax, Service Tax, 
Good and Service Tax and Value Added Tax which have not been deposited by the Company on account of disputes.
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MAXIMUS SECURITIES LIMITED

viii According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of the records of the 
Company, the Company has not surrendered or disclosed any transactions, previously unrecorded as income in the books 
of account, in the tax assessments under the Income-tax Act, 1961 as income during the year.

ix a According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of the records of the 
Company, the Company has not defaulted in the repayment of loans or borrowings or in the payment of interest 
thereon to any lender.

 b According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of the records of the 
Company, the Company has not been declared a willful defaulter by any bank or financial institution or government or 
government authority.

 c In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us by the management, the company has not 
availed any term loans during the year.

 d According to the information and explanations given to us and on an overall examination of the balance sheet of the 
Company, we report that no funds raised on short-term basis have been used for long-term purposes by the Company.

 e According to the information and explanations given to us and on an overall examination of the financial statements of 
the Company, we report that the Company has not taken any funds from any entity or person on account of or to meet 
the obligations of its subsidiaries, associates or joint ventures, as defined in the Act. Therefore, clause 3(ix) (e.) is not 
Applicable.

 f According to the information and explanations given to us and procedures performed by us, we report that the 
Company has not raised loans during the year on the pledge of securities held in its subsidiaries, joint ventures or 
associate companies (as defined under the Act).

x a The Company has not raised any moneys by way of initial public offer or further public offer (including debt 
instruments) Accordingly, clause 3(x)(a) of the Order is not applicable.

 b According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of the records of the 
Company, the Company has not made any preferential allotment or private placement of shares or fully or partly 
convertible debentures during the year. Accordingly, clause 3(x)(b) of the Order is not applicable.

xi a Based on examination of the books and records of the Company and according to the information and explanations 
given to us, considering the principles of materiality outlined in the Standards on Auditing, we report that no fraud by 
the Company or on the Company has been noticed or reported during the course of the audit.

 b According to the information and explanations given to us, no report under sub-section (12) of Section 143 of the Act 
has been filed by the auditors in Form ADT-4 as prescribed under Rule 13 of Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 
2014 with the Central Government.

 c. As per information and explanation given by the management, there were no whistle blower complaints received by 
the Company during the year.

xii According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company is not a Nidhi Company. Accordingly, clause 3(xii) 
of the Order is not applicable.

xiii According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination of the records of the Company, 
transactions with the related parties are in compliance with sections 177 and 188 of the Act where applicable and details of 
such transactions have been disclosed in the Ind AS financial statements as required by the applicable accounting 
standards.

xiv a Based on information and explanations provided to us and our audit procedures, in our opinion, the Company has an 
internal audit system commensurate with the size and nature of its business.

 b We have considered the internal audit reports of the Company issued till date for the period under audit.

xv In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not entered into any 
non-cash transactions with its directors or persons connected to its directors and hence, provisions of Section 192 of the 
Act are not applicable to the Company.

xvi a The Company is not required to be registered under Section 45-IA of the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934. Accordingly, 
clauses 3(xvi)(a) and 3(xvi)(b) of the Order are not applicable.
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 c The Company is not a Core Investment Company (CIC) as defined in the regulations made by the Reserve Bank of 
India. Accordingly, clause 3(xvi) ( c) of the Order is not applicable.

 d According to the information and explanations provided to us during the course of audit, the Group does not have any 
CICs.

xvii The Company has not incurred cash losses in the current and in the immediately preceding financial year.

xviii There has been no resignation of the statutory auditors during the year. Accordingly, clause 3(xviii) of the Order is not 
applicable.

xix According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of the financial ratios, ageing and expected 
dates of realisation of financial assets and payment of financial liabilities, other information accompanying the standalone 
financial statements, our knowledge of the Board of Directors and management plans and based on our examination of the 
evidence supporting the assumptions, nothing has come to our attention, which causes us to believe that any material 
uncertainty exists as on the date of the audit report that the Company is not capable of meeting its liabilities existing at the 
date of balance sheet as and when they fall due within a period of one year from the balance sheet date. We, however, state 
that this is not an assurance as to the future viability of the Company. We further state that our reporting is based on the facts 
up to the date of the audit report and we neither give any guarantee nor any assurance that all liabilities falling due within 
a period of one year from the balance sheet date, will get discharged by the Company as and when they fall due.

xx In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, section 135 of the Company’s Act 2013 is not 
applicable to the Company. Accordingly, clauses 3(xx)(a) and 3(xx)(b) of the Order are not applicable.

For S Ramanand Aiyar & Co.
Chartered Accountants,

Firm Registration No: 000990N

Binod C Maharana
Partner

Membership No. 056373
UDIN: 25056373BMHYXA7402

Mumbai, Dated 20th May 2025

ANNEXURE B TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”)

Opinion

We have audited the Internal Financial Controls over financial reporting of MAXIMUS SECURITIES LIMITED (“the 
Company”) as of 31st March 2025 in conjunction with our audit of Ind AS Financial Statements of the Company for the year 
ended on that date.

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, an adequate Internal Financial Controls system over financial 
reporting and such internal financial controls over financial reporting were operating effectively as at 31st March 2025, based on 
the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essential components of internal 
control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of 
Chartered Accountants of India. (The “Guidance Note”).

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company’s Management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls based on the internal 
control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essential components of internal control 
stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered 
Accountants of India (‘ICAI’). These responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal 
financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including 
adherence to company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy 
and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the 
Companies Act, 2013.
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Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls over financial reporting based on our 
audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial 
Reporting (the “Guidance Note”) and the Standards on Auditing, issued by ICAI and deemed to be prescribed under section 
143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls, both applicable to an audit 
of Internal Financial Controls and, both issued by The Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. Those Standards and the 
Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance 
about whether adequate internal financial controls over financial reporting was established and maintained and if such controls 
operated effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal financial controls system 
over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial controls over financial reporting included 
obtaining an understanding of internal financial controls over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a material weakness 
exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The 
procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the 
financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion on the 
Company’s internal financial controls system over financial reporting.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting

A company's internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding 
the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally 
accepted accounting principles. A company's internal financial control over financial reporting includes those policies and 
procedures that;

(1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and 
dispositions of the assets of the company; 

(2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in 
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being 
made only in accordance with authorizations of Management and Directors of the company; and 

(3) Provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use, or disposition of 
the company's assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting, including the possibility of collusion or 
improper management override of controls, material misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, 
projections of any evaluation of the internal financial controls over financial reporting to future periods are subject to the risk that 
the internal financial control over financial reporting may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the 
degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

For S Ramanand Aiyar & Co.
Chartered Accountants,

Firm Registration No: 000990N

Binod C Maharana
Partner

Membership No. 056373
UDIN: 25056373BMHYXA7402

Mumbai, Dated 20th May 2025

17



 Balance Sheet as at 31st March 2025

      As at As at
  Particulars  Note 31st March 2025 31st March 2024
      Rs. in 000s Rs. in 000s

A  ASSETS    
1  Non  Current Assets    
  (a) Property, Plant and Equipment and Intangible Assets:    
         (i). Property, Plant and Equipment   2.01  3,386   3,779 
         (ii). Investment Property  2.01  7,597   7,752 
         (iii)  Intangible Assets  2.01  66   -   
 (b)  Financial Assets    
  (i)  Non Current Investments  2.02  2,40,974   2,24,633 
 (c)  Other Non Current Assets  2.03  29,730   31,574 

  Total Non Current Assets    2,81,753   2,67,738 

2  Current Assets    
  (a)  Finanacial Assets    
  (i)  Trade Receivables  2.05  1,677   1,987 
  (ii)  Cash and Cash Equivalent  2.06A  18,448   44,798 
  (iii)  Bank Balance other than Cash and Cash Equivalent  2.06B  1,25,368   97,000 
  (iv)  Other Current Financial Assets  2.07  5,389   2,923 
 (b)  Other Current Assets  2.08  1,308   11,203   

  Total Current Assets    1,52,190   1,57,911 

  TOTAL ASSETS    4,33,943   4,25,649 

B  EQUITY AND LIABILITIES    

1  Equity      
  (a)  Share Capital  2.09  1,00,000   1,00,000 
  (b)  Other Equity  2.10  2,81,226   2,56,557 

  Total Equity     3,81,226   3,56,557 

2  Liabilities    
  Non Current Liabilities    
  (a)  Provisions  2.11  28,276   24,292 
  (b)  Defferred Tax Liability (net)  2.04  1,299   1,295 
  (c)  Other Non Current Financial Liabilities  2.12  3,179   3,284   

 Total Non Current Liabilities    32,754   28,871

 Current Liabilities    
  (a)  Financial Liabilities    
   ( i) Borrowings  2.13  6   12 
  (ii). Trade payables  2.14  4,833   26,646 
  (iii) Other Current Financial Liabilities  2.15  15,124   13,563  
  Total Current Liabilities    19,963   40,221 
  TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES    4,33,943   4,25,649 

  Significant Accounting Policies  1  
  Notes forming part of the financial statements  2  

 As per our report of even date   For and on behalf of the Board  
 For S. Ramanad Aiyar & Co.
 Chartered Accountants                         
 Firm Registration No.: 000990N 
 N. R. DIVATE SAMEER S. PIMPALE MEGHA J. VAZKAR
 Chairman Director Whole Time Director
 DIN - 00304616 DIN - 08813127 DIN - 00179162
     
BINOD C. MAHARANA 
Partner K.SURYANARAYANAN K. CHANDRAMOULI  DIPTI DHABOLKAR
M.No. 056373 Whole Time Director Company Secretary  Chief Financial Officer
 DIN - 00106199
      
Mumbai, Dated: 20th May 2025 Mumbai, Dated:20th May 2025
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MAXIMUS SECURITIES LIMITED

Statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended 31st March 2025

      Year Ended Year Ended
  Particulars  Note 31st March 2025 31st March 2024
      Rs. in 000s Rs. in 000s

 INCOME:        

 (a)  Revenue from operations    

  Brokerage Income    38,821   32,337 

  Income from Depository Services   1,707   1,648 

  Financial Products Marketing Fees   381   337 

      40,909 34,322

 (b)  Other Income  2.16  20,469   14,489     

1  Total Income    61,378   48,811  

  EXPENSES:    

  (a) Employee Benefit Expenses  2.17  9,086   10,188 

  (b) Depreciation and Amortisation Expenses  2.01  955   930 

  (c) Finance Cost  2.18  82   47 

  (d) Other Expenses  2.19  32,261   24,125 

2  Total Expenses    42,384   35,290 

3  Profit before Exceptional Items and Tax    18,994   13,521 

4  Exceptional items    -     -   

5  Profit before Tax from Continuing Operations    18,994   13,521 

6  Income Tax Expense:    

  (a) Current tax - Refer Note No. 2.20.1    -     2,088 

  (b) Short Provision of Tax for Earlier Years    213   -   

  (c) Deferred tax    5   35 

      218   2,123 

7  Profit for the year    18,776   11,398 

8  Other Comprehensive Income (OCI)    

  Remeasurement of Gains on Non Current Investments     11,930   58,589 

9  Total Comprehensive Income for the year    30,706   69,987 

10  Earning Per Share (Equity Share of Rs. 10/- Each)    

  Basic and Diluted  (without considering OCI)    1.88   1.14

 Significant Accounting Policies  1  
 Notes forming part of the financial statements  2  

 As per our report of even date   For and on behalf of the Board  
 For S. Ramanad Aiyar & Co.
 Chartered Accountants                         
 Firm Registration No.: 000990N 
 N. R. DIVATE SAMEER S. PIMPALE MEGHA J. VAZKAR
 Chairman Director Whole Time Director
 DIN - 00304616 DIN - 08813127 DIN - 00179162
     
BINOD C. MAHARANA 
Partner K.SURYANARAYANAN K. CHANDRAMOULI  DIPTI DHABOLKAR
M.No. 056373 Whole Time Director Company Secretary  Chief Financial Officer
 DIN - 00106199
      
Mumbai, Dated: 20th May 2025 Mumbai, Dated:20th May 2025
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CASH FLOW STATEMENT FOR THE YEAR ENDED  31ST MARCH, 2025

 2024-25 2023-24
 Rs. in 000s Rs. in 000s

A. Cash Flow from Operating Activities               
 Net Profit Before Tax    18,994  13,521 
 Less: Dividend paid   1,000   800 
    17,994  12,721 
 Adjustment for:       
 Depreciation / Amortisation  955  930  
 Excess Provision / Credit Balances Written Back  (3)  (4) 
 (Profit) / Loss on Sale of Investments  (8,090)  (4,656) 
 Dividend on Long Term Investments  (1,070)  (915) 
 Provision for Gratuity  42  36  
 Provision for Leave Encashment  31  29  
 Financial Cost  23  15  
    (8,112)  (4,565)
 Operating Profit before Working Capital Changes   9,882  8,156 
 Changes in Working Capital
 Adjustments for (Increase) / Decrease in operating assets      
 Trade Receivables  310  (592) 
 Other Non Current Assets  3,035  (11,508) 
 Other Current Financial assets  (2,466)  (822) 
 Bank Balance other than Cash and Cash Equivalent  (28,368)  8,988  
 Other Current Assets  9,895  (10,011)         
 Adjustments for Increase / (Decrease) in operating liabilities       
 Trade Payables  (21,813)  21,078  
 Other Non Current Financial Liabilities  (105)  (120) 
 Other Current Financial Liabilities  1,564  6,732  
 Long Term Provisions  (3)  (4)
 Cash Generated From / (Used In) Operations   (37,951)  13,741
 Direct Taxes (Paid) / Received (Net)   (2,526)  (1,823)
 Net Cash (Used In) / Generated From Operations (A)  (30,595)  20,074
B. Cash Flow from Investing Activities
 Purchase of Fixed Assets   (473)  (181)
 Purchase of Investments   (5,434)  (4,760)
 Sale of Investments   9,111  10,887 
 Dividend Received on Long Term Investment   1,070  915
 Net Cash From Investing Activities (B)  4,274  6,861 
C. Cash Flow from Financing Activities
 Short Term Borrowings   (6)  12 
 Financial Costs   (23)  (15)
 Net Cash Used In Financing Activities ( C)  (29)  (3)
        
 Net (Decrease) / Increase in Cash and Cash Equivalents (A+B+C)  (26,350)  26,932

 Cash and Cash Equivalents as at the commencement of the year   44,798  17,866
 Cash and Cash Equivalents as at the end of the year   18,448  44,798
 Net (Decrease) / Increase as Disclosed above   (26,350)  26,932      
 See Notes attached)

    2024-2025  2023-2024
    Rs. in 000s  Rs. in 000s       

1 Cash and Cash Equivalents include :       

 Cash on Hand   20  7 

 Bank Balances include Bank Deposits maturing within three months   18,428  44,791  

 Total   18,448  44,798        

2 All figures in brackets are outflows.        

3 Previous Year's figures have been regrouped wherever necessary to confirm to this year's classification. 
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 As per our report of even date   For and on behalf of the Board  
 For S. Ramanad Aiyar & Co.
 Chartered Accountants                         
 Firm Registration No.: 000990N 
 N. R. DIVATE SAMEER S. PIMPALE MEGHA J. VAZKAR
 Chairman Director Whole Time Director
 DIN - 00304616 DIN - 08813127 DIN - 00179162
     
BINOD C. MAHARANA 
Partner K.SURYANARAYANAN K. CHANDRAMOULI  DIPTI DHABOLKAR
M.No. 056373 Whole Time Director Company Secretary  Chief Financial Officer
 DIN - 00106199
      
Mumbai, Dated: 20th May 2025 Mumbai, Dated:20th May 2025

 NOTES TO THE CASH FLOW STATEMENT FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH, 2025

20



MAXIMUS SECURITIES LIMITED

Statement of Changes in Equity for the year ended 31.03.2025

Particulars No. of Shares Rs. in 000s

a Equity Share Capital 

Balance as at 31.03.2023           1,00,00,000                1,00,000 

Add: Shares issued during the year                         -                            -   

Balance as at 31.03.2024           1,00,00,000                1,00,000 

Add: Shares issued during the year                         -                            -   

Balance as at 31.03.2025           1,00,00,000                1,00,000 

b Other Equity Rs. in 000s

Particulars Other Equity Total

 Retained  Other
 Earning Comprehensive
  Income

Balance as at 31st March 2023   1,00,802   92,740   1,93,542 

Addition During the year:    

Transfer to retained earnings   11,398   -     11,398 

Interim Dividend paid   (800)  -     (800)

Provision for Market Fluctuations in Investments     (6,172)  (6,172)

Equity Instruments through other comprehensive income   -     58,589   58,589   

Balance as at 31st March 2024   1,11,400   1,45,157   2,56,557 

Addition During the year:    

Transfer to retained earnings   18,776   -     18,776 

Interim Dividend paid   (1,000)  -     (1,000)

Contingency Provision for Taxation   (3,400)  -     (3,400)

Provision for Market Fluctuations in Investments    -     (1,637)  (1,637)

Equity Instruments through other comprehensive income   -     11,930   11,930   

Balance as at 31st March 2025   1,25,776   1,55,450   2,81,226 

 As per our report of even date   For and on behalf of the Board  
 For S. Ramanad Aiyar & Co.
 Chartered Accountants                         
 Firm Registration No.: 000990N 
 N. R. DIVATE SAMEER S. PIMPALE MEGHA J. VAZKAR
 Chairman Director Whole Time Director
 DIN - 00304616 DIN - 08813127 DIN - 00179162
     
BINOD C. MAHARANA 
Partner K.SURYANARAYANAN K. CHANDRAMOULI  DIPTI DHABOLKAR
M.No. 056373 Whole Time Director Company Secretary  Chief Financial Officer
 DIN - 00106199
      
Mumbai, Dated: 20th May 2025 Mumbai, Dated:20th May 2025

21



NOTE NO. 1   SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 

I) CORPORATE INFORMATION

 The Company’s main business activities are Share and Stock Broking, 
Investment, Depository Participant and Marketing of Financial Products. 
The Company is having Registered Office / Head office in Mumbai and has 
no branches.

II) SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

 a. BASIS OF PREPARATION:

  The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with 
Indian Accounting Standards (hereafter referred to as the ‘Ind AS’) as 
notified by Ministry of Corporate Affairs pursuant to Section 133 of 
Companies Act, 2013 (the “Act”) read with Companies (Indian 
Accounting Standards (Ind AS)) Rules, 2015 and other relevant 
provisions of the Act.

  The financial statements have been prepared on a historical cost 
convention and accrual basis, except for certain financial assets and 
liabilities measured at fair value.

 b. USE OF ESTIMATES

  The preparation of the financial statements, in conformity with the 
recognition and measurement principles of Ind AS, requires the 
management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the 
reported amounts of assets and liabilities as at the date of financial 
statements and the results of operation during the reported period. 
Although these estimates are based upon management’s best 
knowledge of current events and actions, actual results could differ 
from these estimates which are recognized in the period in which they 
are determined.

 c. OPERATING CYCLE FOR CURRENT AND NON-CURRENT 
CLASSIFICATION

  The Company presents assets and liabilities in the balance sheet 
based on current /non-current classification. 

  All the assets and liabilities have been classified as current or non-
current, wherever applicable, as per the operating cycle of the 
Company as per the guidance set out in Schedule III to the Act. 

  The operating cycle is the time between the acquisition of assets for 
processing and their realisation in cash or cash equivalents. Based on 
the nature of activities of the Company and the normal time between 
acquisition of assets and their realization in cash or cash equivalents, 
the company has determined its operating cycle as 12 months for the 
purpose of classification of its assets and liabilities as current and 
non-current.

 d. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 

  Property, Plant and Equipment are stated at cost of acquisition 
including attributable interest and finance costs, if any, till the date of 
acquisition/ installation of the assets less accumulated depreciation 
and accumulated impairment losses, if any. 

  Subsequent expenditure relating to Property, Plant and Equipment is 
capitalised only when it is probable that future economic benefits 
associated with the item will flow to the Company and the cost of the 
item can be measured reliably. All other repairs and maintenance 
costs are charged to the Statement of Profit and Loss as incurred. The 
cost and related accumulated depreciation are eliminated from the 
financial statements, either on disposal or when retired from active 
use and the resultant gain or loss are recognised in the Statement of 
Profit and Loss.

  Capital work-in-progress, representing expenditure incurred in 
respect of assets under development and not ready for their intended 
use, are carried at cost. Cost includes related acquisition expenses, 
construction cost, related borrowing cost and other direct 
expenditure.

 e. INVESTMENT PROPERTY 

  Land or Building held to earn rentals or for capital appreciation or both 
rather than for use in the production or supply of goods and services or 
for administrative purposes; or sale in the ordinary course of business 
is recognised as Investment Property. Investment Property are 
measured initially at cost, including transaction costs. Subsequent to 
initial recognition, investment properties are stated at cost less 
accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment loss, if any.

  Though, the Company measures investment property using cost 
based measurement, the fair value of investment property is 
disclosed in Notes.

  Investment properties are de-recognised either when they have been 
disposed off or when they are permanently withdrawn from use and 
no future economic benefit is expected from their disposal. The 
difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying 
amount of the asset is recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss 
in the period of de-recognition.

 f. DEPRECIATION/AMORTISATION ON FIXED ASSETS

  Depreciation on Fixed Assets is provided on straight-line method in 
accordance with life of assets specified in Part C of Schedule II to the 
Companies Act, 2013 as per details given below:

  Sl. Nature of Assets Estimated useful 
  No.  life in years

  1 Building 60

  2 Computers - Servers 6

  3 Computers – End user devices 3

  4 Furniture and Fixtures 10

  5 Motor Vehicles 8

  6 Office Equipments 5

  Expenses towards renovations of enduring benefit to the interiors of 
the office premises not owned by the company are apportioned over 
the period of the agreement with the owners.

  Individual assets acquired for less than five thousand rupees are fully 
depreciated in the year of acquisition.

  AMORTISATION

  Expenses incurred on Computer Software are amortized on straight 
line basis over a period of three years.

  ASSETS ACQUIRED IN SATISFACTION OF CLAIMS

  Assets acquired in satisfaction of claim has been accounted at fair 
value of the assets acquired and is marked down by a subsequent 
reduction in the Net Realisable Value, if any.

 g. IMPAIRMENT OF NON -FINANCIAL ASSETS

  Non- financial assets other than inventories and non-current assets 
held for sale are reviewed at each balance sheet date to determine 
whether there is any indication. If any such indication exists or when 
annual impairment testing for an asset required, the company 
estimates the asset’s recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is 
higher of assets or cash generating units (CGU) fair value less cost of 
disposal and its value in use. Recoverable amount is determined for 
an individual asset, unless the asset does not generate cash flow that 
is largely independent of those from other assets or group of assets. 

  When the carrying amount of an asset or CGU exceeds its 
recoverable amount, the asset is considered impaired and is written 
down to its recoverable amount.

 h. STOCK IN TRADE / SECURITIES FOR SALE

  Stock in trade is valued at weighted average cost or net realisable 
value whichever is lower.

 i. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

  Cash and cash equivalents for the purpose of cash flow statement 
comprise cash in hand, balances in current accounts with scheduled 
banks and bank deposits.

 j. REVENUE RECOGNITION

  Revenue is recognized when there is reasonable certainty of its 
ultimate realization / collection. Revenue is net of service tax where 
recovered.

  (i) Income from Operations

   Brokerage income is recognized on transactions on which 
"Settlements" are completed during the year. In case of Income 
from Marketing of Financial Products the same are accounted on 
cash basis.

  (ii) Profits on Sale of Investments

   Profit on Sale of Investments is accounted reckoning the average 
cost of the investments.

  (iii) Other Income

   Other Income is accounted on accrual basis except Dividend 
Income, Interest on Government Bonds and Interest on Income 
Tax Refunds which are accounted on cash basis.

 k. BORROWING COST

  Borrowing costs that are attributable to the acquisition or construction 
of qualifying assets are capitalized as part of the cost of such assets. A 
qualifying asset is one that necessarily takes substantial period of 
time to get ready for intended use. All other borrowing costs are 
charged to revenue.

 l. RETIREMENT BENEFITS

  The Company has dissolved the Provident Fund Trust and is in the 
process of closure of the same as the number of employees has fallen 
below the Statutory Minimum. The Company’s Super Annuation Fund 
is covered by the scheme with Life Insurance Corporation of India, are 
charged to the Statement of Profit & Loss. The Company also 
provides for gratuity as per the Gratuity Act, 1972.
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MAXIMUS SECURITIES LIMITED

 m. LEAVE ENCASHMENT

  Provision is made for Leave Encashment on the basis of actual leave 
to the credit of the employee.

 n. TAXES ON INCOME

  Current tax is determined on the basis of the amount of tax payable in 
respect of  taxable income for the year.

  Deferred tax is calculated at tax rates that have been enacted or 
substantively enacted at the Balance Sheet date and is recognized on 
timing differences, being the difference between the taxable income 
and accounting income that originate in one period and are capable of 
reversal in one or more subsequent periods. Deferred tax assets 
subject to the consideration of prudence, are recognized and carried 
forward only to the extent that there is a reasonable/virtual certainty 
that sufficient future taxable income will be available against which 
such deferred tax asset can be realized.

 o. PROVISIONS, CONTINGENT LIABILITIES AND CONTINGENT 
ASSETS

  Provisions involving substantial degree of estimation in measurement 
are recognized when there is a present obligation as a result of past 
events and it is probable that there will be an outflow of resources. 
Contingent liabilities are not recognized but are disclosed in the notes. 
Contingent Assets are neither recognized nor disclosed in the 
financial statements.

 p. LEASED ASSETS

  Rentals in respect of assets taken on operating lease by the company 
are expensed with reference to the lease and other considerations.

 q. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

  A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset 
of one entity and a financial liability or equity instrument of another 
entity.

  Financial Assets

  Initial Measurement:

  All financial assets are recognised initially at fair value plus, in the 
case of financial assets not recorded at fair value through profit or 
loss, transaction costs that are attributable to the acquisition of the 
financial asset. Purchases or sales of financial assets that require 
delivery of assets within a time frame established by regulation or 
convention in the market place (regular way trades) are recognised on 
the trade date, i.e., the date that the Company commits to purchase or 
sell the asset.

  Subsequent Measurement:

  Subsequent measurement is determined with reference to the 
classification of the respective financial assets and the contractual 
cash flow characteristic of the financial assets, the company classifies 
financial assets as subsequently measured at amortized cost, fair 
value through other comprehensive income or fair value through profit 
and loss.  

  Financial Assets carried at amortised cost

  A financial asset is measured at amortised cost if it is held within 
a business model whose objective is to hold the asset in order to 
collect contractual cash flows and the contractual terms of the 
financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely 
payments of principal and interest on the principal amount 
outstanding

  Financial Assets at fair value through other Comprehensive 
Income (FVOCI)

  A financial asset is measured at FVOCI if it is held within a business 
model whose objective is achieved by both collecting contractual cash 
flows and selling financial assets and the contractual terms of the 
financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely 
payments of principal and interest on the principal amount 
outstanding.

  Financial Assets at fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL)

  A financial asset which is not classified in any of the above categories 
are measured at FVTPL Debt instruments included within the 
FVTOCI category are measured at fair value with all changes 
recognized in profit and loss. However currently the company does 
not have any financial instrument in this category.

  Equity Investment

  All equity investments in scope of Ind AS 109 are measured at fair 
value except unquoted equity investments which are stated at cost. 
Equity instruments which are held for trading are classified as at 
FVTPL. For other equity instruments, the company decides to classify 
the same either as at FVTOCI or FVTPL. The company makes such 
election on an instrument by instruments basis. The Classification is 
made on initial recognition and is irrevocable.

  If the company decides to classify an equity instrument as at FVTOCI, 
all fair value changes on the instrument, excluding dividends are 
recognized in other comprehensive income. 

  Equity instruments included within the FVTPL category are measured 
at fair value with all changes recognized in the profit or loss.

   De-recognition of Financial Assets

  The Company de-recognises a financial asset only when the 
contractual rights to the cash flows from the asset expire, or it 
transfers the financial asset and substantially all risks and rewards of 
ownership of the asset to another entity.

  If the Company neither transfers nor retains substantially all the risks 
and rewards of ownership and continues to control the transferred 
asset, the Company recognizes its retained interest in the assets and 
an associated liability for amounts it may have to pay. 

  If the Company retains substantially all the risks and rewards of 
ownership of a transferred financial asset, the Company continues to 
recognise the financial asset and also recognises a collateralised 
borrowing for the proceeds received.

  Financial Liabilities

  Financial liabilities are classified, at initial recognition, as financial 
liabilities at fair value through profit or loss, loans and borrowings and 
payables as appropriate. All financial liabilities are recognised initially 
at fair value and, in the case of loans and borrowings and payables, 
net of directly attributable transaction costs.

  • Borrowings

   After initial recognition, interest-bearing loans and borrowings 
are subsequently measured at fair value.

  • Financial Guarantee Contracts

   Financial guarantee contracts issued by the Company are those 
contracts that require a payment to be made to reimburse the 
holder for a loss it incurs because the specified debtor fails to 
make a payment when due in accordance with the terms of a debt 
instrument. Financial guarantee contracts are recognised initially 
as a liability at fair value, adjusted for transaction costs that are 
directly attributable to the issuance of the guarantee. 
Subsequently, the liability is measured at the higher of the 
amount of loss allowance determined as per impairment 
requirements of Ind AS 109 and the amount recognised less 
cumulative amortisation. 

  • De-recognition of Financial Liabilities

   Financial Liabilities are removed from the balance sheet when 
the obligation specified in the contract is discharged, cancelled or 
expired. The difference between the carrying amount of 
a financial liability that has been extinguished or transferred to 
another party and the consideration paid, including any non cash 
assets transferred or liabilities assumed, is recognised in the 
Statement of Profit and Loss as other gains/(losses).

   Offsetting Financial Instruments

   Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities are offset and the net 
amount is reported in the Balance Sheet if there is a currently 
enforceable legal right to offset the recognised amounts and 
there is an intention to settle on a net basis; to realise the assets 
and settle the liabilities simultaneously.

 r. FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENT

  The Company measures financial assets and financial liability at fair 
value at each balance sheet date.

  Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to 
transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market 
participants at the measurement date. The fair value measurement is 
based on the presumption that the transaction to sell the asset or 
transfer the liability takes place either:

  - In the principal market for the asset or liability, or

  -  In the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous 
market for the asset or liability

  The principal or the most advantageous market must be accessible by 
the Company. The fair value of an asset or a liability is measured using 
the assumptions that market participants would use when pricing the 
asset or liability, assuming that market participants act in their 
economic best interest.

  A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into account 
a market participant’s ability to generate economic benefits by using 
the asset in its highest and best use or by selling it to another market 
participant that would use the asset in its highest and best use. The 
Company uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the 
circumstances and for which sufficient data are available to measure 
fair value, maximising the use of relevant observable inputs and 
minimising the use of unobservable inputs.

  All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in 
the financial statements are categorised within the fair value 
hierarchy, described as follows, based on the lowest level input that is 
significant to the fair value measurement as a whole:

  -  Level 1 - Quoted (unadjusted) market prices in active markets for 
identical assets or liabilities
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  - Level 2 - Valuation Techniques for which the lowest level input 
that is significant to the fair value measurement is directly or 
indirectly observable

  - Level 3 - Valuation Techniques for which the lowest level input 
that is significant to the fair value measurement is 
unobservable. For assets and liabilities that are recognised in 
the financial statements on a recurring basis, the Company 
determines whether transfers have occurred between levels in 
the hierarchy by re-assessing categorisation (based on the 

lowest level input that is significant to the fair value 
measurement as a whole) at the end of each reporting period.

  The Management analyses the movements in the values of assets 
and liabilities which are required to be remeasured or re-assessed 
as per the Company's accounting policies. For this analysis, the 
Management verifies the major inputs applied in the latest valuation 
by agreeing the information in the valuation computation and other 
relevant documents.

 2.01 (a) Property, Plant and Equipment and Intangible Assets  Rs. in 000s 

Particulars Property, Plant and Equipment Total Intangible
   Assets

 Vehicles Furniture  Computer Office  Computer
  & Fixtures Equipments Equipments  Software

Gross Carrying as at 1st April, 2023   5,263   765   2,059   508   8,595   2,475 

Additions during the year   -     -     139   42   181   -   

Deletions during the year   -     -     -     -     -     -   

As at 31st March 2024   5,263   765   2,198   550   8,776   2,475 

Additions during the year   -     29   324   51   404   69 

Deletions during the year   -     -     -     -     -     41 

As at 31st March 2025   5,263   794   2,522   601   9,180   2,503 

Depreciation and Impairment       

As at 1st April 2023   1,362   726   1,743   404   4,235   2,462 

Depreciation charge for the year   567   -     153   42   762   13 

Deletions during the year   -     -     -     -     -     -   

As at 31st March 2024   1,929   726   1,896   446   4,997   2,475 

Depreciation charge for the year   567   5   166   59   797   3 

Deletions during the year   -     -     -     -     -     41 

As at 31st March 2025   2,496   731   2,062   505   5,794   2,437       

Net Book Value            

 As at 31st March 2025   2,767   63   460   96   3,386   66 

 As at 31st March 2024   3,334   39   302   104   3,779   -

 2.01 (b)  Investment Property Rs. in 000s

Particulars Building

Gross Carrying as at 1st April, 2023   9,771 

Additions during the year   -   

Deletions during the year   -   

As at 31st March 2024   9,771 

Additions during the year   -   

Deletions during the year   -   

As at 31st March 2025   9,771 

Depreciation and Impairment  

As at 1st April 2023   1,864 

Depreciation charge for the year   155 

Deletions during the year   -   

As at 31st March 2024   2,019 

Depreciation charge for the year   155 

Deletions during the year   -   

As at 31st March 2025   2,174 

Net Book Value  

As at 31st March 2025   7,597 

As at 31st March 2024   7,752 

Note: 

No external valuation was conducted during the Financial Year Ended 31st March, 2025. However, based on internal assessment and management’s review of market 
indicators, there has been no material change in the fair value of the investment property since the last valuation. Accordingly, the fair value disclosed as at 31st March, 
2024, continues to represent a reasonable estimate of the property's fair value as at 31st March, 2025. Details of the Company’s investment properties and information 
about the fair value hierarchy as at 31st March, 2024 are as follows :   

Particulars  Amount (Rs in '000s)

Fair value of Investment Property - Gala at Raj Industrial Complex, Andheri (E), Mumbai - 400 059 16,095.00
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MAXIMUS SECURITIES LIMITED

 Notes forming part of Financial Statements 

      As at 31st  As at 31st 
  Particulars   March 2025 March 2024

IN FULLY PAID UP EQUITY SHARES (QUOTED)   
60 (Previous Year Nil) Shares of Rs.1 each in Adani industries Limited  139   -
145 (Previous Year Nil) Shares of Rs.2 each in Adani Ports and Special Economic Zone Limited  171   -  
257 (Previous Year 120) Shares of Rs.10 each in Apar industries Limited  1,423   838 
10 Shares of Rs.1 each in Asian Paints Limited  23   28
12888 Shares of Rs. 1 each in Astral Limited  16,663   25,653 
15000 Shares of Rs.1 each In Ashok Leyland Limited  3,063   2,567 
13548 Shares of Rs. 2 each in BSE Limited  74,240   34,085 
500 Shares of Rs.5 each In CERA Sanitaryware Limited  2,819   3,389 
18000 Shares of Rs.2 each In Cholamandalam Investment & Finance Company Limited  27,352   20,819 
1000 Shares of Rs.1 each in Delta Corp Limited  83   111 
2000 Shares of Rs. 1.each in Elgi Equipments Limited  966   1,203 
100 Shares of Rs.1 each in Exide Industries Limited  36   30 
1250 Shares of Rs.2 each In GE Vernova T&D India Limited  1,941   1,063 
2000 Shares of Rs.2 each In Graphite India Limited  956   1,207 
3363 Shares of Rs. 2 each in GMM Pfaudler Limited  3,406   4,156 
100 Shares of Rs. 2 each in HCL Technologies Limited  159  154 
800 Shares of Rs.1 each In HDFC Bank Limited  1,463   1,159 
500 Shares of Rs.5 each In Heritage Foods Limited  193   168 
2 Shares of Rs. 10 each in Honeywel Automation India Limited  67   77 
1000 Shares of Rs.5 each in Indostar Capital Finance Limited  306   186 
100 Shares of Rs. 5 each in Infosys Limited  157   150 
800 Shares of Rs.10 each In IFB Industries Limited  1,065   1,202 
5900 (Previous Year 4600) Shares of Rs.10 each in Jio Financial Services Limited  1,342   1,628 
400 Shares of Rs.10 each in Kaira Can Company Limited  671   770 
260 (Previous Year 150) Shares of Rs.10 each in KEI industries Limited  752   518 
100 Shares of Rs.5 each in Kotak Mahindra Bank Limited  217   179 
5850 Shares of Rs.2 each in Larsen & Toubro Limited  20,422   22,078 
300 Shares of Rs. 2 each in Lux Industries Limited  412   322 
140 (Previous Year Nil) Shares of Rs.5 each in Mazahon Dock Ship Builders Limited  370   -   
1000 (Previous Year Nil) Shares of Rs.1 each in NBCC (India) Limited  82   -   
30 Shares of Rs.10 each in Page Industries Limited  1,283   1,033 
1000 Shares of Rs.2 each in Punjab National Bank  96   124 
36 (Previous Year Nil) Shares of Rs.10 each in Polycab India Limited  185   -   
500 (Previous Year 100) Shares of Rs. 10 each in Reliance Industries Limited  638   298 
(including Bonus of 250 shares received during the year)  
3500 Shares of Rs.10 each in Sanathnagar Enterprises Limited  99   66 
5000 Shares of Rs.10 each in Sastasundar Ventures Limited  1,213   1,516 
45 (Previous Year Nil) Shares of Rs. 2 each in Siemens Limited  238   -   
1000 Shares of Rs.1 each in State Bank of India  772   753  
1000 Shares of Rs.1 each in Sterling Biotech Limited  -     -   
500 Shares of Rs.1 each in Sundaram Fastners Limited  457   546 
15000 Shares of Rs.10 each in Supreme Infrastructure India Limited  1,603   987 
33 Shares of Rs. 1 each in Tata Consultancy Services Limited  119   128 
795 (Previous Year 765) Shares of Rs.1 each In Tasty Bite Eatables Limited  6,527   9,414 
1000 Shares of Rs.1 each In Titan Company Limited  3,064   3,805   
1600 (Previous Year Nil) Shares of Rs.1 each In Transformers and Rectifiers (India) Limited  858   -   
1000 Shares of Rs.1 each In TVS Motor Limited  2,420   2,152 
20 Shares of Rs.10 each in Ultratech Cement Limited  230   195   
258 Shares of Rs.10 each in Viceroy Hotels Limited  29   1   
3800 Shares of Rs.1 each in Voltas Limited  5,542   4,194 
270 (Previous Year 180) Shares of Rs.10 each In Voltamp Transformers Limited  1,926   1,744  
50800 Shares (Previous year 58800) of Rs.10 each in Whirlpool of India Limited  50,317   71,451   

SUB TOTAL (A)  2,38,575   2,22,147 

IN FULLY PAID UP GOVERNMENT BONDS (QUOTED)  
8.10 % 300  Bonds in Indian Railway Finance Corporation Limited  323   333 
8.30%  600 Bonds in National Highways Authority of India  651   672 
8.76% 800 Bonds in Housing and Urban Development Corporation Limited  901   940 
8.20% to 8.35% 500 Bonds in Housing and Urban Development  
Corporation Limited  524   541 

SUB TOTAL ( B)  2,399   2,486   

TOTAL  [A + B]    2,40,974   2,24,633 

 2.02  Non Current Investments         Rs. in 000s 

Previous Year figures in terms of quantity indicated within brackets reprsents the stock position as on 31st March 2024
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 Notes forming part of Financial Statements 

      As at 31st  As at 31st 
  Particulars   March 2025 March 2024
     Rs. in 000s Rs. in 000s

2.03 Other Non Current Assets   

Deposits   

Unsecured, Considered Good  

Deposits with Stock Exchanges and Others  27,817   30,852 

Other Loans and Advances  

Unsecured, Considered Good  

Advance Payment of Taxes [Net of Provisions]  1,913   722 

Total   29,730   31,574 

2.04 Deferred Tax Liabilities (Net)   

Deffered Tax Liabilities    

Timing Difference on account of Provision for Gratuity, Leave Encashment and Doubtful Debts.  38   56 

Timing Difference on account of Accumulated Depreciation of Property, Plant and  

Equipment and Intangible Assets  1,261   1,239 

Total   1,299   1,295 

2.05 Trade Receivables 

Unsecured, Considered Good :    

Trade Receivables  1,677   1,987 

Total   1,677   1,987 

Ageing of Trade Receivable as at 31st March 2025 and 31st March 2024 is given below :  

Trade Receivables ageing schedule as at 31st March,2025

Particulars Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment

 Less than 6 months- 1-2 2-3 More than Total
 6 months 1 year year years 3 years 

(i) Undisputed Trade Receivables - Considered Good  571   68   118   53   867   1,677 

(i) Undisputed Trade Receivables - Considered Doubtful  -     -     -     -     -     -   

(iii) Disputed Trade Receivables - Considered Good  -     -     -     -     -     -   

(iv) Disputed Trade Receivables - Considered Doubtful  -     -     -     -     -     -  

Trade Receivables ageing schedule as at 31st March, 2024 

Particulars Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment

 Less than 6 months- 1-2 2-3 More than Total
 6 months 1 year year years 3 years 

(i) Undisputed Trade Receivables - Considered Good  915   62   77   51   882   1,987 

(i) Undisputed Trade Receivables - Considered Doubtful  -     -     -     -     -     -   

(iii) Disputed Trade Receivables - Considered Good  -     -     -     -     -     -   

(iv) Disputed Trade Receivables - Considered Doubtful  -     -     -     -     -     -   
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MAXIMUS SECURITIES LIMITED

 Notes forming part of Financial Statements 

      As at 31st  As at 31st 
  Particulars   March 2025 March 2024
     Rs. in 000s Rs. in 000s

2.07 Other Current Financial Assets   

Interest Accrued on Bank Deposits 5,389 2,923

Sub Total (A)                    5,389 2,923

Inventories - Stock in Trade:    

Stock- in- trade  

IN FULLY PAID UP EQUITY SHARES (QUOTED)  

(At Cost or Net Realisable Value whichever is lower)
10 Shares of Rs.10 each in NEPC Agro Foods Limited                            1 1
200 Shares of Rs.10 each in Roofit Industries Limited 33                          33
15 Shares of Rs. 10 each in S & S Power Switchgear Limited  1                            1

 35 35

Less:  Fall in Market Value 35                          35

Sub Total (B) -                           -

Total  (A) + (B)  5,389                     2,923

2.08 Other current assets 

Unsecured, Considered Good    

Prepaid Expenses 757 778

Other advances recoverable in cash or in kind or for value to be received 551                   10,425

Total  1,308                   11,203

2.09  Share Capital

Authorised

1,00,00,000 Equity share of Rs. 10/- per share 100,000 100,000

 100,000 100,000

Issued Capital

1,00,00,000 Equity share of Rs. 10/- per share 100,000 100,000

 100,000 100,000

Subscribed and Paid up Capital

1,00,00,000 Equity share of Rs. 10/- per share 100,000 100,000

 100,000 100,000

2.06A Cash and Cash Equivalent     

Bank Balances - Current Account  428   18,791 

Bank Deposits maturing within three months [Refer Note No. 2.20.3]  18,000   26,000 

Cash Balance    20   7  

Total  18,448   44,798 

2.06B Bank Balance other than Cash and Cash Equivalent   

Bank Deposits with more than 12 months Maturity  [Refer Note No.2.20.3]  43,806   15,500 

Other Bank Deposits    [Refe Note No.2.20.3]  81,562   81,500   

Total  1,25,368   97,000 
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2.09 Share Capital (Contd.)

Movements in Share Capital

Equity shares

 Notes forming part of Financial Statements 

     As at 31st March 2025 As at 31st March 2024

  Particulars  Number Rs. in 000s Number Rs. in 000s

Number of shares at the beginning of the year 1,00,00,000  1,00,000 1,00,00,000 1,00,000 

Add: Shares issued during the year - - - -

Number of shares at the end of the year 1,00,00,000 1,00,000 1,00,00,000 1,00,000 

Terms/Rights attached to Equity Shares  

The company has one class of share referred to as equity shares having a par value of Rs.10/-. Each holder of equity shares is 
entitled to one vote per share and dividend per share as may be declared/proposed by the Board of Directors.  

In the event of liquidation of the Company, the holders of equity shares will be entitled to receive any of the remaining assets of 
the company, after distribution of all preferential amounts. The distribution will be in proportion to the number of equity shares 
held by the shareholders.  

Shares held by holding company and its nominees:  

     As at 31st March 2025 As at 31st March 2024

  Particulars  Number % of holding Number % of holding

Hybrid Financial Services Limited, the Holding 
Company with its nominees    

Equity shares of Rs 10/- each fully paid         1,00,00,000  100%         1,00,00,000  100%

Details of shareholders holding more than 5 percent equity shares in the company:

     As at 31st March 2025 As at 31st March 2024

  Particulars  No. of shares % of holding No. of shares % of holding

Hybrid Financial Services Limited, the Holding 
Company with its nominees    

Equity shares of Rs 10/- each fully paid         1,00,00,000  100%         1,00,00,000  100%

Share Holding of Promoters

     As at 31st March 2025 Changes during the year

  Particulars  No. of shares % of holding No. of shares

Hybrid Financial Services Limited, the Holding 
Company with its nominees 1,00,00,000  100%       Nil   

Total 1,00,00,000  100% 

Share Holding of Promoters

     As at 31st March 2024 Changes during the year

  Particulars  No. of shares % of holding No. of shares

Hybrid Financial Services Limited, the Holding 
Company with its nominees 1,00,00,000  100%       Nil   

Total 1,00,00,000  100% 
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MAXIMUS SECURITIES LIMITED

 Notes forming part of Financial Statements 

      As at 31st  As at 31st 
  Particulars   March 2025 March 2024
     Rs. in 000s Rs. in 000s

2.10 Other Equity

Retained Earnings   

Opening   1,11,400   1,00,802 

Add:  Net Profit for the year   18,776   11,398 

Less: Interim Dividend paid   1,000   800 

Less: Contingency Provision for Taxation (Refer Note No. 2.20.1)   3,400   -   

Total (A)   1,25,776   1,11,400 

Other Comprehensive Income   

As per Last Balance Sheet   1,45,157   92,740 

Movement in OCI (Net) during the year   11,930   58,589 

Less:  Provision for Market Fluctuations in Investments  (Refer Note No.2.20.2)   1,637   6,172 

Total (B)   1,55,450   1,45,157 

Total (A) + (B)   2,81,226   2,56,557 

 

2.11 Provision

Provision for employee benefits  

 Gratuity  509   467 

 Leave Encashment  269   242   

  778   709

Provision For Taxation [Net of Advance Tax]  -     1,122 

Contingency Provision for Taxation (Refer Note No. 2.20.1)  3,400   -   

Provision for Market Fluctuations in Investments  (Refer Note No. 2.20.2)  24,098   22,461 

Total   28,276   24,292  

2.12 Other Non Current Financial Liabilities

Client Deposits towards Margin 3,179 3,284

Total 3,179 3,284

2.13 Borrowings (Current)

Loans repayable on demand

Secured

From Banks - Overdraft (Secured against Pledge of Fixed Deposits) 6 12

Total 6 12

2.14 Trade payables 

Total Outstanding of  

- Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises(MSME)  (Refer Note No. 2.20.9) - -   

 - Other than MSME  4,833                    26,646 

 Total  4,833                     26,646 

29



 Notes forming part of Financial Statements 

     Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment

  Particulars  Less than 1 year 1-2 years 2-3 years More than 3 years Total

Ageing of Trade Payable as at 31st March 2025 and 31st March 2024 is given below :     

Trade Payable ageing schedule as at 31st March,2025                                                                                     (Rs. in 000s)  

(i) MSME                            -                               -                               -                               -                               -   

(ii) Others                     4,781 8 1 43 4,833

(iii) Disputed dues - MSME                            -                               -                               -                               -                               -   

(iv) Disputed dues - Others                                -   

     Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment

  Particulars  Less than 1 year 1-2 years 2-3 years More than 3 years Total

Trade Payable ageing schedule as at 31st March,2024                                                                                         (Rs. in 000s)  

(i) MSME                            -                               -                               -                               -                               -   

(ii) Others                     26,599                              4                              2                             41                      26,646 

(iii) Disputed dues - MSME                            -                               -                               -                               -                               -   

(iv) Disputed dues - Others                                -   

      As at 31st  As at 31st 
  Particulars   March 2025 March 2024
     Rs. in 000s Rs. in 000s

2.15 Other Current Financial Liabilities 

Payable to Holding Company and Other Related Parties  
for Services Provided and Reimbursements  2,592   7,353   

Statutory Dues Payables:    

Tax Deducted at Source  461   388 
Profession Tax  1   1 
Goods and Service Tax  40   62 

Other Payables:    

Advance from Depository Customers  1,348   1,370 
Auditor's Remuneration  108   108 
Rent Deposit Received  300   300 
Outstanding Expenses  8,153   1,863 
Others  2,121   2,118 

Total   15,124   13,563 

      Year Ended Year Ended
 Particulars    31st  March 2025 31st March 2024
     Rs. in 000s Rs. in 000s

2.16 Other Income  

Interest Income    
Interest on Deposits with Banks   10,115   7,837 
Interest on Tax Free Government Bonds  183   183   

Dividend Income  

Long Term Investments  1,070   915  

Other non-operating income   

Rent Received  813   771 
Excess Provision no longer required written back  3   4 
Profit on Sale of Investments (Net)  8,090   4,656 
Others  195   123 
  
Total   20,469   14,489 
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      Year Ended Year Ended
 Particulars    31st March 2025 31st March 2024
     Rs. in 000s Rs. in 000s

2.17 Employee Benefit Expenses 

Salaries & Other Allowances  5,199   5,101 

Contribution to Superannuation Fund  72   72 

Gratuity  42   36 

Leave Encashment  31   29 

Staff Welfare Expenses  291   262 

Reimbursement of Salaries  3,451   4,688 

Total   9,086   10,188 

2.18 Finance Cost

Bank Charges and Commission 59 32

Interest on Bank Overdraft                          23 15 

Total                           82                        47

2.19 Other expenses

Audit Fees and Other Services  146   148 

Membership and Subscription  242   230 

Rent  2,580   2,616 

Legal and Professional Fees  273   229 

Stamp Duty Charges  2,004   1,068 

Travelling Expenses  51   51 

Conveyance Expenses  335   308 

Printing and Stationery   192   179 

Telephone Expenses  388   331 

Electricity Expenses  342   282 

Insurance  Expenses  298   264 

Shared Service Expenses  20,718   14,949 

Office Maintenance Expenses  559   276 

SEBI Registration and Turnover Fees  221   211 

Motor Car Expenses  343   315 

Computer Maintenance Expenses  659   655 

Transaction Charges  875   686 

Business Development and Entertainment Expenses  80   91 

Postage and Courier Charges  45   54 

Expenses on Depository Services  262   211 

Clearing House Expenses  139   302 

Miscellaneous Expenses  1,509   669 

Total   32,261   24,125 

 Notes forming part of Financial Statements 
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2.20   NOTES ON FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

1. The Company has not provided for Income Tax for the year but has created a contingency provision of Rs. 34,00,000/- 
towards Income Tax as the merger application with the parent Company, Hybrid Financial Services Limited is pending at 
NCLT. Upon sanction of the merger by NCLT, the accounts would have to be recast with effect from 1st April, 2024 to adopt 
the merger and the company is not expecting any Income Tax payable.

2. During the earlier year the Company had made a Provision @ 10% of the Market Value of all the Quoted Investments out of 
caution and cover as unforeseen fluctuation in market prices. The realizable value of market investments is subject to 
market volatility and associated tax incidences if any. In view of the same the provision was made. During the year the 
Company has made a provision of Rs. 16,37,300/- as against the provision of Rs.61,72,100/- in the previous year. The 
provision created so for as on 31st March 2025 is Rs. 2,40,98,000/- as against Rs. 2,24,60,700/- as on 31st March 2024. 

3. Fixed Deposit with Bank of Rs.6,90,61,874/- (Previous year Rs.6,90,00,000/-) is pledged for Overdraft Facility, Base 
Capital and Guarantees given to National Securities Clearing Corporation Limited and BSE Limited.

4. RELATED PARTY DISCLOSURES

 Name of the Related Party and its relationship

 (i) 100% Holding Company (ii) Associate
          Hybrid Financial Services Limited      Garron Trading Company Private Limited        
    Hybrid Services and Trading Private Limited
    Hybrid Systems Limited

 (iii) Key Management Personnel 
  Mrs. Megha J. Vazkar  - Whole Time Director
  Mr. K. Suryanarayanan - Whole Time Director
  Mrs. Dipti Dabholkar  - Chief Financial Officer

 Notes forming part of Financial Statements 

Sr. Nature of Transactions With Holding With Associate With Key Management  
No   Company Companies Personnel
  (Rs.in 000s) (Rs.in 000s) l(Rs.in 000s)

1. Rent Deposit given  20,00 (20,00) -
 (Previous Year) (-) - (-)

2. Providing of Services by them 196,00 45,48 -
 (Previous Year) (131,25) (58,87) (-)

3. Rent paid to them 25,80 (24,00) -
 (Previous Year) (24,00) (-) (-)

4. Interim Dividend paid to them 10,00 (8,00) -
 (Previous Year) (8.00) (-) (-)

5. Other Expenses Charged by them 22,01 2,47 -
 (Previous Year) (15,26) (2,24) -

6. Other Expenses Charged to them 1 (1) -
 (Previous Year) (1) (-) (-)

7. Outstanding payable 84,56 15 -
 (Previous Year) (68,73) (4,80) (-)

8. Remuneration and Perquisites - - 29,49
 (Previous Year) (-) (-) (27,81)

5. EARNING PER SHARE

Weighted average number of shares at the end of the year.  1,00,00,000 1,00,00,000

Profit for the year (Excluding OCI)(Rs. in 000s) 187,76 113,98

Basic and Diluted EPS (Rs.) 1.88 1.14

 CURRENT YEAR PREVIOUS YEAR

6. PAYMENT TO AUDITORS

As Statutory Auditor 120 120

Other Services including Statutory Certification etc. 24 26

Out of Pocket Expenses 2 2

TOTAL 146 148

 CURRENT YEAR PREVIOUS YEAR

(Rs. in 000s)
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7. The company is operating in a single business segment viz Share Broking and Allied Activities and in one geographical 
segment; accordingly, no segment reporting is required in accordance with the Ind AS 108 on operating segment, issued 
by The Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.

8. During the year 2022-2023 the Company has got Udyam Registration Certificate dated 9th June,2022 from Ministry of 
Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises (MSME).

9. The Company has not received any intimation from its vendors regarding their status under Micro, Small and Medium 
Enterprises Development Act, 2006 and hence disclosures, if any, required under the said Act have not been made.

10. The company has six employees on its pay roll. The Company has provided Gratuity as per Gratuity Act 1972 instead of Ind 
AS 19 “Employee Benefit” issued by Institute of Chartered Accountant of India.

11. Undisclosed income: The Company does not have any undisclosed income which is not recorded in the books of account 
that has been surrendered or disclosed as income during the year (previous year) in the tax assessments under the Income 
Tax Act, 1961 (such as, search or survey or any other relevant provisions of the Income Tax Act, 1961.

12. Corporate Social Responsibility: The company is not liable to make payment towards Corporate Social Responsibility as 
per Section 135 of Companies Act 2013.

13. Details of Crypto Currency or Virtual Currency: The Company has not traded or invested in Crypto currency or Virtual 
Currency during the financial year.

14. The Company does not have any Benami property, where any proceeding has been initiated or pending against the 
company for holding any Benami property.

15. Capital-Work-in Progress (CWIP): The company does not have any Capital-Work in progress hence disclosures related to 
Capital Work-in-Progress is not applicable.

16. Intangible assets under development: The company does not have any Intangible assets under development hence 
disclosures related to Intangible asset under development is not applicable.

17. Title deeds of Immovable Property not held in name of the Company: The title in respect of self-constructed buildings and 
title deeds of all other immovable properties (other than properties where the company is the lessee and the lease 
agreements are duly executed in favour of the lessee), disclosed in the financial statements included under property, plant 
and equipment are held in the name of the Company as at the balance sheet date

18. The disclosures relating to Revaluation of Property is not applicable since there is no revaluation done for immovable 
property during current year

19. The company does not grant any loans and advances in nature of loans to promoters, directors, KMP and the related 
parties (as defined under Companies Act, 2013), hence disclosures related to Loans and advances is not applicable to the 
company.

20. The Company has not been declared a wilful defaulter (As defined by RBI circular) by any bank or financial institution or 
other lander during the financial year.

21. Relationship with Struck off Companies under section 248 of the Companies Act, 2013 or section 560 of Companies Act, 
1956. The company does not have any transaction with companies struck off under section 248 of companies act 2013. or 
section 560 of companies act 1956.

22. Registration of charges or satisfaction with Registrar of Companies: The Company does not have any charges or 
satisfaction which is yet to be registered with ROC beyond the statutory period.

23. The Company has complied with the number of layers under prescribed under clause (87) of section 2 of the Act read with 
the Companies (Restriction on number of Layers) Rules, 2017.

24. Expenditure in foreign currency: No expenditure incurred in Foreign currency during the year.

25. Earnings of foreign exchange: No earning of Foreign currency during the year

26. Utilisation of Borrowed funds and share premium:

 1. The Company has not advanced or loaned or invested funds to any other person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign 
entities (Intermediaries) with the understanding that the Intermediary shall:

 Notes forming part of Financial Statements 
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  (a)  directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on 
behalf of the company (Ultimate Beneficiaries) or

  (b)  provide any guarantee, security or the like to or on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries

 2. The Company has not received any fund from any person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities (Funding Party) 
with the understanding (whether recorded in writing or otherwise) that the Company shall:

  a. directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on 
behalf of the Funding Party (Ultimate Beneficiaries) or 

  b. provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries,

27. Comparative financial information (i.e., the amounts and other disclosures for the previous year presented above as 
corresponding figures), is included as an integral part of the current year's Financial Statements, and is to be read in 
relation to the amounts and other disclosures relating to the current year. The previous year's figures have been reworked, 
regrouped, rearranged and reclassified wherever necessary.

28. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES 

 Financial Risk Factors

 The Company’s financial risk management is an integral part of how to plan and execute its business strategies. The 
Company’s overall risk management programme focuses on the unpredictability of financial markets and seeks to 
minimise potential adverse effects on the financial performance of the Company. 

 Market Risk

 Market risk is the risk that changes in market prices, such as foreign exchange rates, interest rates and equity prices will 
affect the Company's income or the value of its holdings of financial instruments. The objective of market risk management 
is to manage and control market risk exposures within acceptable parameters, by providing for the same, while optimising 
the return.

 Interest Rate Risk

 The Company has financial assets which are at fixed interest rates and is therefore not exposed to the risks associated with 
the effects of fluctuation in interest rates.

 Foreign Exchange Risk

 Foreign currency risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of 
changes in foreign exchange rates. As the company does not deal in forex transaction, there is no foreign exchange risk.

 Credit Risk

 Credit Risk represents the potential loss that the Company would incur if counter parties fail to perform pursuant to the 
terms of their obligations to the Company. The Company limits its credit risk by carrying out transactions. The maximum 
exposure to credit risk is represented by the carrying amount of each financial asset in the statement of financial position. 
The Company's main credit risk concentration is on the amount of Rs. 11,06,184/- which are outstanding for more than six 
months as on 31st March 2025.

 There is no risk in terms of Bank Balances, since the counterparty is a reputable bank with high quality external credit 
ratings.

 Liquidity Risk

 Liquidity Risk is the risk that the Company will not be able to meet its financial obligations as they fall due. The Company’s 
approach to managing liquidity is to ensure, as far as possible, that it will always have sufficient liquidity to meet its liabilities 
when due, under both normal and stressed conditions, without incurring unacceptable losses or risking damage to the 
Company’s reputation. The Company manages liquidity risk by maintaining adequate reserves, by continuously 
monitoring forecast and actual cash flows and matching the maturity profiles of the financial assets and liabilities. The table 
below illustrates the aged analysis of the Company’s financial liabilities 

 Notes forming part of Financial Statements 
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 Notes forming part of Financial Statements 

 On Demand Less than 1 year 1 to 5 years Total

As at 31 March 2025    

Borrowings - 6 - 6

Trade Payables - 48,33 - 48,33

Other Payables - 151,24 - 151,24  

As at 31 March 2024    

Borrowings - 12 - 12

Trade Payables - 266,46 - 266,46

Other Payables - 135,63 - 135,63  

29. Additional Regulatory Information:

 Ratios:

Sr. Ratio Numerator Denominator 31-Mar-25 31-Mar-24 % Change
No.    Ratio Ratio 

1 Current Ratio Current Assets Current Liabilities 7.62 3.93 94.18%
      (See Note No.1)

2 Debt Equity Ratio Total Debts Shareholder’s Equity Nil Nil -

3 Debt Service Coverage Ratio Net Operating Income Debt Service Nil Nil -

4 Return on Equity Ratio Profit for the period Average Shareholders’  0.0509 0.0351 45.15%
   Equity          (See Note No.2)

5 Inventory Turnover Ratio Cost of Goods sold Average Inventory  Not  Not  
    Applicable   Applicable  -

6 Trade Receivables Turnover  Revenue From  Average Trade  22.33 20.30 10.02%
 Ratio Operations Receivables 

7 Trade Payables Turnover  Total Purchases Average Trade Payables  Not Not 
 Ratio   Applicable Applicable  -

8 Net Capital Turnover Ratio Revenue From  Average Working Capital         0.31 0.29 6.09%
  Operations    

9 Net Profit Ratio Net Profit Revenue From Operations         0.46 0.33 38.21%
      (See Note No.3)

10 Return on Capital employed EBIT Capital Employed         0.05 0.04 31.43%
      (See Note No.4)

11 Return on Investment Return/Profit/Earnings Investment          0.00520 0.00489 6.38%
      

 Note No 1: Variation due to decrease in current liabilities 

 Note No 2: Variation due to increase in Profit during the year

 Note No 3: Variation due to increase in Profit during the year 

 Note No 4: Variation due to increase in EBIT during the year

30. Figures have been rounded off to the nearest rupees and expressed in thousands.

Signature to Notes No 1 and 2

 As per our report of even date   For and on behalf of the Board  
 For S. Ramanad Aiyar & Co.
 Chartered Accountants                         
 Firm Registration No.: 000990N 
 N. R. DIVATE SAMEER S. PIMPALE MEGHA J. VAZKAR
 Chairman Director Whole Time Director
 DIN - 00304616 DIN - 08813127 DIN - 00179162
     
BINOD C. MAHARANA 
Partner K.SURYANARAYANAN K. CHANDRAMOULI  DIPTI DHABOLKAR
M.No. 056373 Whole Time Director Company Secretary  Chief Financial Officer
 DIN - 00106199
      
Mumbai, Dated: 20th May 2025 Mumbai, Dated:20th May 2025
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